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PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Item 1.     Financial Statements
NOVATION COMPANIES, INC.
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(unaudited; dollars in thousands, except share and per share amounts)

June 30,
2014

December 31,
2013

Assets
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $39,580 $7,222
Marketable securities, current 16,530 3,728
Service fee receivable, net of allowance of $52 and $14, respectively 934 424
Other current assets 1,302 1,648
Current assets held for sale 1,245 2,098
Current assets of discontinued operations — 7,517
Total current assets 59,591 22,637
Non-Current Assets
Marketable securities, non-current 4,554 —
Property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation 3,873 3,596
Deferred income tax asset, net 1,041 1,101
Other assets 1,367 760
Non-current assets held for sale 370 431
Non-current assets of discontinued operations — 5,517
Total non-current assets 11,205 11,405
Total assets $70,796 $34,042
Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity (Deficit)
Liabilities:
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable $2,723 $2,391
Deferred income tax liability, net 1,041 1,101
Other current liabilities 533 1,561
Current liabilities held for sale 1,909 1,817
Current liabilities of discontinued operations — 6,495
Total current liabilities 6,206 13,365
Non-Current Liabilities
Senior notes 84,957 83,867
Other liabilities 1,359 3,666
Non-current liabilities held for sale 1,504 1,140
Non-current liabilities of discontinued operations — 224
Total non-current liabilities 87,820 88,897
Total liabilities 94,026 102,262

Commitments and contingencies (Note 8)

Shareholders' deficit:
Capital stock, $0.01 par value per share, 120,000,000 shares authorized:
Common stock, 91,479,519 shares issued and outstanding 915 915
Additional paid-in capital 743,663 739,468
Accumulated deficit (770,735 ) (811,742 )
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Accumulated other comprehensive income 2,927 3,103
Total Novation Companies, Inc. shareholders' deficit (23,230 ) (68,256 )
Noncontrolling interests — 36
Total shareholders' deficit (23,230 ) (68,220 )
Total liabilities and shareholders' deficit $70,796 $34,042

See notes to condensed consolidated financial statements.
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NOVATION COMPANIES, INC.
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(unaudited; dollars in thousands, except share and per share amounts)

For the Six Months Ended
June 30,

For the Three Months Ended
June 30,

2014 2013 2014 2013
Income and Revenues:
Service fee income $10,603 $8,370 $2,932 $1,653
Interest income – mortgage securities 3,396 2,405 1,610 1,488
Total 13,999 10,775 4,542 3,141

Costs and Expenses:
Cost of services 6,127 4,817 2,663 1,278
Selling, general and administrative expense 12,969 11,484 6,596 5,576
Total 19,096 16,301 9,259 6,854

  Other income 64 1,445 9 161
  Interest expense (1,595 ) (1,584 ) (799 ) (800 )

Loss from continuing operations before income
taxes (6,628 ) (5,665 ) (5,507 ) (4,352 )

Income tax (benefit) expense, continuing
operations (7,230 ) 27,666 (7,258 ) 26,528

Net income (loss) from continuing operations 602 (33,331 ) 1,751 (30,880 )
Income from discontinued operations, net of
income taxes 40,405 7,417 38,493 4,311

Net income (loss) 41,007 (25,914 ) 40,244 (26,569 )
Less: Net (loss) income attributable to
noncontrolling interests — (77 ) (33 ) 24

Net income (loss) attributable to Novation $41,007 $(25,837 ) $40,277 $(26,593 )
Earnings Per Share attributable to Novation:
Basic $0.45 $(0.28 ) $0.44 $(0.29 )
Diluted $0.45 $(0.28 ) $0.44 $(0.29 )
Weighted average basic shares outstanding 90,866,933 90,716,933 90,866,933 90,716,933
Weighted average diluted shares outstanding 90,904,092 90,716,933 90,940,843 90,716,933

See notes to condensed consolidated financial statements.
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NOVATION COMPANIES, INC.
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(unaudited; dollars in thousands)

For the Six Months Ended
June 30,

For the Three Months Ended
June 30,

2014 2013 2014 2013
Net income (loss) $41,007 $(25,914 ) $40,244 $(26,569 )
Other comprehensive income:
Change in unrealized gain on mortgage securities –
available-for-sale (Note 9) (176 ) (473 ) 50 146

Total comprehensive income (loss) 40,831 (26,387 ) 40,294 (26,423 )
Comprehensive (loss) income attributable to
noncontrolling interests:
Less: Net (loss) income attributable to
noncontrolling interests — (77 ) (33 ) 24

Total comprehensive income (loss) attributable to
Novation $40,831 $(26,310 ) $40,327 $(26,447 )

See notes to condensed consolidated financial statements.
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NOVATION COMPANIES, INC.
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY (DEFICIT)
(unaudited; dollars in thousands)

Total Novation Shareholders’ Equity (Deficit)

Common
Stock

Additional
Paid-in
Capital

Accumulated
Deficit

Accumulated
Other
Comprehensive
Income

Noncontrolling
Interests

Total
Shareholders’
Equity
(Deficit)

Balance, December 31, 2013 $915 $739,468 $ (811,742 ) $ 3,103 $ 36 $ (68,220 )
Compensation recognized under stock
compensation plans — 381 — — — 381

Distributions to noncontrolling interests— — — — (5 ) (5 )
Exchange of membership interests for
forgiveness of note payable — 3,814 — — 107 3,921

Deconsolidation of subsidiary — — — — (138 ) (138 )
Net income — — 41,007 — — 41,007
Other comprehensive loss — — — (176 ) — (176 )
Balance, June 30, 2014 $915 $743,663 $ (770,735 ) $ 2,927 $ — $ (23,230 )

Total Novation Shareholders’ Equity (Deficit)

Common
Stock

Additional
Paid-in
Capital

Accumulated
Deficit

Accumulated
Other
Comprehensive
Income

Noncontrolling
Interests

Total
Shareholders’
Equity
(Deficit)

Balance, December 31, 2012 $915 $740,171 $ (744,213 ) $ 3,301 $ (2,198 ) $ (2,024 )
Compensation recognized under stock
compensation plans — 231 — — — 231

Contributions from noncontrolling
interests — — — — 83 83

Distributions to noncontrolling
interests — — — — (384 ) (384 )

Acquisition of noncontrolling interests — (1,863 ) — — 1,863 —
Net loss — — (25,837 ) — (77 ) (25,914 )
Other comprehensive loss — — — (473 ) — (473 )
Balance, June 30, 2013 $915 $738,539 $ (770,050 ) $ 2,828 $ (713 ) $ (28,481 )

See notes to condensed consolidated
financial statements.
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NOVATION COMPANIES, INC.
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(unaudited; dollars in thousands)

For the Six Months Ended
June 30,
2014 2013

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income (loss) $41,007 $(25,914 )
Net income from discontinued operations 40,405 7,417
Net income (loss) from continuing operations 602 (33,331 )

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Accretion of mortgage securities (385 ) (373 )
Provision for (recovery of) bad debt, net 298 (1,051 )
Amortization of deferred debt issuance costs and senior debentures discount 1,090 1,051
Fair value adjustments — (150 )
Impairments of other assets held for sale 689 —
Loss on disposal of fixed assets 6 1
Compensation recognized under stock compensation plans 381 231
Depreciation expense 818 540
Deferred taxes (7,230 ) 27,600
Eliminations of intercompany activity 1,822 3,142
Changes in:
Due from discontinued operations 730 (366 )
Service fee receivable (831 ) (181 )
Restricted cash — 64
Other current assets and liabilities, net 529 474
Other noncurrent assets and liabilities, net 373 1,050
Deferred revenue (82 ) 6
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (1,331 ) 1,934
Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities of continuing operations (2,521 ) 641
Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities of discontinued operations (2,480 ) 3,779
Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities (5,001 ) 4,420

Cash flows from investing activities:
Proceeds from paydowns of mortgage securities 385 404
Restricted cash, net (3 ) —
Proceeds from paydowns of notes receivable — 1,663
Issuance of notes receivable — (200 )
Proceeds from sale of subsidiary 54,748 —
Purchases of available-for-sale securities (17,536 ) —
Purchase of cost method investment (600 ) —
Purchases of property and equipment (913 ) (1,420 )
Net cash provided by investing activities of continuing operations 36,081 447
Net cash used in investing activities of discontinued operations (556 ) (33 )
Net cash provided by investing activities 35,525 414

Cash flows from financing activities:
Cash payments for contributions of capital to discontinued operations (1,054 ) (1,068 )
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Cash receipts from distributions of earnings from discontinued operations — 4,031
Principal payments under capital leases (148 ) (110 )
Paydowns of note payable to related party — (250 )
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities of continuing operations (1,202 ) 2,603
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities of discontinued operations 991 (3,322 )
Net cash used in financing activities (211 ) (719 )

Continued
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NOVATION COMPANIES, INC.
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(unaudited; dollars in thousands)

For the Six Months Ended
June 30,
2014 2013

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents of continuing operations $32,358 $3,691
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 7,222 8,851
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period $39,580 $12,542

Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents of discontinued operations $(2,045 ) $424
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 2,045 7,511
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period $— $7,935

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION
(unaudited; dollars in thousands)

For the Six Months Ended
June 30,
2014 2013

Cash paid for interest $551 $278
Cash received from income taxes, net 37 21
Cash received on mortgage securities – available-for-sale with no cost basis 3,011 2,032
Non-cash investing and financing activities:
Exchange of membership interests for forgiveness of note payable 3,921 —
Acquisition of noncontrolling interest for extinguishment of intercompany debt — 1,863
Assets acquired under capital lease 140 294

See notes to condensed consolidated financial statements.
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NOVATION COMPANIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the period ended June 30, 2014 (Unaudited)

Note 1. Financial Statement Presentation

Description of Operations – Novation Companies, Inc. (the “Company” or "Novation" or "we” or “us”) acquires and operates
technology-enabled service businesses, with a focus on building and developing these businesses to create long-term
value.

The Company owns 100% of CorvisaCloud, LLC ("CorvisaCloud"). CorvisaCloud provides cloud-based
communication software under the CorvisaOne™ brand and implementation consulting services for its own clients as
well as clients of a leading customer relationship management (CRM) software provider.

The Company owns 100% of Advent Financial Services LLC (“Advent”). Advent provides financial settlement services
for professional tax preparers nationwide. On June 6, 2014 the Company announced that it was exploring alternatives
for Advent with the goal of selling or exiting the business by the end of 2014. As a result, the operations of Advent
will be included in continuing operations until the date on which the business is sold or, in the event the business is
abandoned, the run-off operations have ceased. The assets and liabilities of Advent have been classified as held for
sale as of June 30, 2014. See Note 3 to the condensed consolidated financial statements for additional information
regarding these developments.

On April 16, 2014, the Company and the non-controlling members of StreetLinks, a national residential appraisal and
mortgage real estate valuation management services company, entered into a purchase and sale agreement with
Assurant Services, LLC, a subsidiary of Assurant, Inc. ("Assurant"), pursuant to which Assurant purchased 100% of
the outstanding membership units of StreetLinks. This transaction closed on April 16, 2014. See Note 3 to the
condensed consolidated financial statements for additional information regarding this transaction. The operations of
StreetLinks have been classified as discontinued operations for all periods presented.

Effective February 27, 2013 the Company and non-controlling owners agreed to dissolve Mango Moving, LLC
("Mango"), a third-party logistics provider within the household goods industry, and abandon its operations. As
discussed in Note 3, the operations of Mango have been classified as discontinued operations for all periods presented.

Financial Statement Presentation – The Company’s condensed consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“GAAP”). The preparation of
financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of income and expense during the
period. The Company uses estimates and judgments in establishing the fair value of its mortgage securities and
accounting for income taxes, including the determination of the timing of the establishment or release of the valuation
allowance related to the deferred tax asset balances and reserves for uncertain tax positions. While the condensed
consolidated financial statements and footnotes reflect the best estimates and judgments of management at the time,
actual results could differ significantly from those estimates.

Cash equivalents consist of liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less. Cash equivalents are
stated at cost, which approximates fair value.

The condensed consolidated financial statements of the Company include the accounts of all wholly-owned and
majority-owned subsidiaries. Intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.
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The Company's condensed consolidated financial statements are unaudited. In the opinion of management, all
necessary adjustments have been made, which were of a normal and recurring nature, for a fair presentation of the
condensed consolidated financial statements.

The Company's condensed consolidated financial statements should be read in conjunction with Management's
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations and the consolidated financial statements of
the Company and the notes thereto included in the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2013.
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Note 2. New Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2014, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update ("ASU") 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Topic 606), which outlines a single comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for revenue
arising from contracts with customers and supersedes most current revenue recognition guidance, including
industry-specific guidance. The ASU applies to all contracts with customers except those that are within the scope of
other topics in the FASB Accounting Standards Codification. Compared with current U.S. GAAP, the ASU also
requires significantly expanded disclosures about revenue recognition. The ASU is effective for annual reporting
periods (including interim reporting periods within those periods) beginning after December 15, 2016. Early
application is not permitted. The Company is evaluating the impact of ASU 2014-09 on its consolidated financial
statements and related disclosures. The Company has not yet selected a transition method nor has it determined the
effect of the standard on its ongoing financial reporting.

In April 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-08, Presentation of Financial Statements (Topic 205) and Property, Plant,
and Equipment (Topic 360): Reporting Discontinued Operations and Disclosures of Disposals of Components of an
Entity, which amends the definition of a discontinued operation in ASC 205-20 and requires entities to provide
additional disclosures about discontinued operations as well as disposal transactions that do not meet the
discontinued-operations criteria. The FASB issued the ASU to provide more decision-useful information and to make
it more difficult for a disposal transaction to qualify as a discontinued operation. The ASU is effective prospectively
for all disposals (except disposals classified as held for sale before the adoption date) or components initially
classified as held for sale in periods beginning on or after December 15, 2014. Early adoption is permitted. The impact
of the adoption of ASU 2014-08 on the Company's financial statements will be based on future disposal activity.

In September 2013, the U.S. Department of the Treasury and the IRS released final regulations providing guidance on
the application of IRC Section 263(a) to amounts paid to acquire, produce, or improve tangible property, as well as
rules for materials and supplies (“Tangible Property Regulations”). While the Tangible Property Regulations are
generally effective for taxable years beginning on or after January 1, 2014, taxpayers are permitted to early adopt
provisions for years beginning on or after January 1, 2012. This guidance did not have a significant impact on the
Company's financial statements.

In July 2013, the FASB issued ASU 2013-11, Income Taxes (Topic 740): Presentation of an Unrecognized Tax
Benefit When a Net Operating Loss Carryforward, a Similar Tax Loss, or a Tax Credit Carryforward Exists (a
consensus of the FASB Emerging Issues Task Force), which provides guidance on financial statement presentation of
an unrecognized tax benefit when a net operating loss (NOL) carryforward, a similar tax loss, or a tax credit
carryforward exists. The FASB's objective in issuing this ASU is to eliminate diversity in practice resulting from a
lack of guidance on this topic in current U.S. GAAP. This ASU applies to all entities with unrecognized tax benefits
that also have tax loss or tax credit carryforwards in the same tax jurisdiction as of the reporting date and is effective
for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2013, and interim periods within those years. This guidance did not have
a significant impact on the Company's financial statements.

Note 3. Divestitures

Held for Sale

Advent Financial Services, LLC (Financial Intermediary Segment)

On April 16, 2014 the Company announced a significant strategic shift with the sale of StreetLinks, which is
discussed below, and the decision to focus our resources primarily on the business of CorvisaCloud. This decision was
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based largely on the Company's firm belief that CorvisaCloud represents a better opportunity for Novation to build
long-term shareholder value. On June 6, 2014 the Company announced that it was exploring alternatives for Advent
with the goal of selling or exiting the business by the end of 2014. As a result, the operations of Advent will be
included in continuing operations until the date on which the business is sold or, in the event the business is
abandoned, the run-off operations have ceased. Based on the Company's analysis of the facts and circumstances
existing as of June 30, 2014, which included an assessment as to the progress of discussions with potential buyers, the
Company classified Advent as held for sale in accordance with the relevant accounting guidance.

8
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The major classes of assets and liabilities held for sale as of June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013 are detailed below:

June 30, 2014 December 31,
2013

Assets
Current Assets
Service fee receivable, net 92 69
Restricted cash, current 1,035 1,035
Other current assets 118 994
Total current assets 1,245 2,098
Non-Current Assets
Property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation 359 420
Other assets 11 11
Total non-current assets 370 431
Total assets $1,615 $2,529

Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable $39 $103
Accrued expenses 1,839 1,669
Due to Novation (A) 1,430 5,650
Other current liabilities 31 45
Total current liabilities 3,339 7,467
Non-Current Liabilities
Other liabilities 1,504 1,140
Total non-current liabilities 1,504 1,140
Total liabilities $4,843 $8,607

(A)Amounts due to Novation are eliminated upon consolidation. As such, these amounts are not included in theconsolidated balance sheets for any periods presented.

Discontinued Operations

StreetLinks, LLC (Appraisal Management Segment)

On April 16, 2014, the Company and non-controlling members of StreetLinks (the "Sellers") entered into a purchase
and sale agreement with Assurant, pursuant to which Assurant purchased 100% of the outstanding membership units
of StreetLinks in exchange for $60.0 million paid in cash at closing and up to $12.0 million in post-closing
consideration contingent upon the total revenue of StreetLinks in fiscal years 2015 and 2016. The sale closed on April
16, 2014. The Company received approximately $53.9 million in cash proceeds at closing, of which $1.0 million was
used to make certain earned bonus payments to three StreetLinks executives. Subsequent to closing, the Company
received an additional $0.8 million relating to adjustments for working capital.

The post-closing consideration provides for payment if (a) the total revenue of StreetLinks is $184 million or more for
calendar year 2015, Assurant shall pay to the Sellers an aggregate of $12.0 million; but if not, then (b) if the total
revenue of StreetLinks is greater than $167.5 million for the calendar year 2016, Assurant shall pay to Sellers up to an
aggregate of $12.0 million, based on a linear scale where full payment of the $12.0 million would occur at total
revenue of $184 million. The post-closing consideration will be reduced for certain earned bonus payments to three
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StreetLinks executives of $2.0 million if the maximum post-closing consideration is earned and otherwise prorated
based on the same linear scale.

The transaction resulted in a gain of approximately $48.2 million, which is included in the net income from
discontinued operations line on the condensed consolidated statement of operations. Also included in net income from
discontinued operations are approximately $1.8 million of transaction-related expenses, such as legal and consulting
fees.

In connection with the sale, the Company and Assurant also entered into a transition services agreement, pursuant to
which the Company will provide ongoing information technology, human resources management and accounting
services to StreetLinks for a period of up to eighteen months. The cash flows related to these services are not
significant to StreetLinks. The Company will have no significant continuing involvement with StreetLinks beyond the
transition services. Professional service fees earned by

9
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the ongoing entity under the transition services agreement are included in service fee income on the condensed
consolidated statement of operations.
The Company has also executed a Non-Competition, Non-Solicitation and Non-Disclosure Agreement with
StreetLinks providing that Novation will be prohibited from competing in the real estate appraisal management or
valuation services business for a period of four years.
Mango Moving LLC (Logistics Segment)

Because of continued capital demands and difficulties generating positive cash flows or earnings, effective February
27, 2013, the Company committed to a plan to abandon the operations of Mango, which comprised the Company's
entire Logistics segment. The run-off operations of Mango ceased during the first quarter of 2013, and the Company
will not have any significant continuing involvement in Mango.

Results of Discontinued Operations

For the six and three months ended June 30, 2014, net income from discontinued operations consists of the net
operating income and losses of the disposed entities and any necessary eliminations through the date of sale or
disposal, the gain on the sale of StreetLinks, income tax expense, and transaction-related expenses. For the six and
three month periods ended June 30, 2013, net income (loss) from discontinued operations consists solely of the net
operating income and losses of the disposed entities and any necessary eliminations.

The results of the Company's discontinued operations are summarized below:
For the Six Months Ended
June 30,

For the Three Months Ended
June 30,

2014 2013 2014 2013
Service fee income $29,131 $84,310 $5,247 $43,165

Income from discontinued operations before
income taxes $48,232 $7,417 $46,320 $4,311

Income tax expense 7,827 — 7,827 —
Income from discontinued operations, net of
income taxes $40,405 $7,417 $38,493 $4,311

10
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The major classes of assets and liabilities of discontinued operations as of December 31, 2013 are detailed below.
There were no remaining assets or liabilities of discontinued operations as of June 30, 2014

December 31,
2013

Assets
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $2,045
Service fee receivable, net 4,781
Other current assets 691
Total current assets 7,517
Non-Current Assets
Property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation 909
Goodwill 3,170
Other assets 1,438
Total non-current assets 5,517
Total assets $13,034

Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable $3,122
Accrued expenses 2,574
Deferred revenue 621
Due to Novation (A) 717
Other current liabilities 178
Total current liabilities 7,212
Non-Current Liabilities
Other liabilities 224
Total non-current liabilities 224
Total liabilities $7,436

(A)Amounts due to Novation are eliminated upon consolidation. As such, these amounts are not included in theconsolidated balance sheets for any periods presented.

11
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Note 4. Marketable Securities

The following table presents certain information on the Company's portfolio of available-for-sale securities as of
June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013 (dollars in thousands):

As of June 30, 2014

Description of Securities Amortized Cost Gross Unrealized
Gains

Gross Unrealized
Losses

Estimated Fair
Value

Marketable securities, current
Corporate notes and bonds $6,850 $— $(2 ) $6,848
Agency securities 6,130 — — 6,130
Mortgage securities 625 2,927 — 3,552
Total $13,605 $2,927 $(2 ) $16,530

Marketable securities, non-current
Corporate notes and bonds $4,556 $— $(2 ) $4,554

As of December 31, 2013

Description of Securities Amortized Cost Gross Unrealized
Gains

Gross Unrealized
Losses

Estimated Fair
Value

Marketable securities, current
Mortgage securities $625 $3,103 $— $3,728

Prior to 2008, the Company originated, purchased, securitized, sold, invested in and serviced residential
nonconforming mortgage loans and mortgage securities. As a result of those activities, we acquired mortgage
securities that continue to be a source of our earnings and cash flow. As of June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013,
these mortgage securities consisted entirely of the Company's investment in the residual securities issued by
securitization trusts sponsored by the Company. Residual securities consist of interest-only, prepayment penalty and
overcollateralization bonds.

There were no other-than-temporary impairments relating to available-for-sale securities for the six and three months
ended June 30, 2014 and 2013. The average remaining maturities of the Company’s short-term and long-term
available-for-sale investments at June 30, 2014 were approximately six months and fifteen months, respectively.
Maturities of mortgage securities owned by the Company depend on repayment characteristics and experience of the
underlying financial instruments. See Note 9 to the condensed consolidated financial statements for details on the
Company's fair value methodology.

Variable Interest Entities

The following table relates to the securitizations where the Company retained an interest in the assets issued by the
securitization trust, a variable interest entity or VIE (dollars in thousands):

Size/Principal
Outstanding
(A)

Assets on
Balance Sheet
(B)

Liabilities on
Balance Sheet

Maximum
Exposure to
Loss(C)

Year to Date
Loss on Sale

Year to Date
Cash Flows
(D)

June 30, 2014 $4,295,594 $3,552 $— $3,552 $— $3,395
December 31, 2013 4,811,987 3,728 — 3,728 — 2,436

(A)Size/principal outstanding reflects the estimated principal of the underlying assets held by the VIE.
(B)
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Assets on balance sheet are securities issued by the entity and are recorded in the mortgage securities line item on
the condensed consolidated balance sheets.

(C)The maximum exposure to loss includes the assets held by the Company and assumes a total loss on the referencedassets held by the VIE.
(D)Year to date cash flows are for the six months ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively.
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Note 5. Business Combinations and Consolidation

Prior to 2013, the Company entered into a Membership Interest Purchase Agreement (the "Unit Purchase Agreement")
with its Chief Operating Officer, Mr. Steve Haslam, pursuant to which Mr. Haslam sold 1,927 units in StreetLinks to
the Company in exchange for a total purchase price of $6.1 million, payable in quarterly installments. At the time of
the original transaction, Mr. Haslam's units represented approximately 5% of the outstanding StreetLinks membership
units. On April 16, 2014, the Company and Mr. Haslam agreed to terminate the Unit Purchase Agreement. In full
satisfaction of the Company's outstanding obligations under the Unit Purchase Agreement, which are discussed further
in Note 7 to the condensed consolidated financial statements, the Company transferred back to Mr. Haslam 1,218
StreetLinks membership units (approximately 3% of StreetLinks), which represents the portion of the membership
units attributable to the $3.9 million in unpaid installment payments and $0.2 million in interest remaining under the
Unit Purchase Agreement. The termination of the Unit Purchase Agreement and simultaneous transfer of 1,218
StreetLinks membership units to Mr. Haslam reduced the Company's ownership interest to approximately 88% as of
April 16, 2014.

During the fourth quarter of 2013, the Company, through a series of transactions with the minority owners of
CorvisaCloud, acquired an additional 15% ownership stake in CorvisaCloud for a total purchase price of
approximately $0.6 million. These transactions increased the Company's ownership interest in CorvisaCloud to 100%
as of December 31, 2013.

Prior to 2013, Advent entered into a revolving note and revolving credit agreement with the Company whereby the
noncontrolling members of Advent pledged their membership interests as security for Advent's obligations under the
agreements. As a result of Advent's default under the agreements, during the second quarter of 2013 the Company
foreclosed on the membership interests of the noncontrolling members in full satisfaction of Advent's outstanding
intercompany debt obligations. At the time of foreclosure, Advent's noncontrolling members held approximately 22%
of the outstanding membership interests. Therefore, the foreclosure raised the Company's ownership interest in
Advent to 100% as of December 31, 2013. In accordance with the relevant accounting guidance, this debt
extinguishment was treated as an equity transaction, reducing both additional paid in capital and Advent's
noncontrolling interest deficit by approximately $1.9 million on a consolidated basis with no corresponding gain or
loss recognized in the condensed consolidated statement of operations.

Note 6. Property and Equipment, Net

All of the Company's property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and amortization.
Depreciation and amortization are computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the
related assets. The estimated useful lives of the Company's property and equipment are the lesser of 5 years or
remaining lease term for leasehold improvements, 5 years for furniture and fixtures, 3 to 5 years for office and
computer equipment, and 3 years for software.

Maintenance and repairs are charged to expense. Major renewals and improvements are capitalized. Gains and losses
on dispositions are credited or charged to earnings as incurred. Depreciation and amortization expense relating to
property and equipment was $0.8 million and $0.4 million for the six and three months ended June 30, 2014,
respectively and $0.5 million and $0.3 million for the six and three months ended June 30, 2013, respectively.

The following table shows the Company's property and equipment, net as of June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013
(dollars in thousands):

June 30,
2014

December 31,
2013
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Furniture, fixtures and office equipment $592 $509
Hardware and computer equipment 2,681 2,382
Software 2,714 2,309
Leasehold improvements 757 727
Total Cost 6,744 5,927
Less: Accumulated depreciation and amortization (2,871 ) (2,331 )
Property and equipment, net $3,873 $3,596

The hardware and computer equipment amount above includes gross assets under capital leases of $0.7 million as of
both June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013. Accumulated depreciation and amortization relating to these assets
totaled approximately $0.4 million and $0.3 million as of June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively.
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Note 7. Borrowings

Senior Notes – The Company has outstanding unsecured senior notes pursuant to three indentures (collectively, the
“Senior Notes”) with an aggregate principal balance of $85.9 million. The Senior Notes were created through an
exchange of the Company's previously outstanding junior subordinated notes that occurred prior to 2012. This
exchange was considered a modification of a debt instrument for accounting purposes, therefore the Company uses the
effective interest method to accrete from the existing balances of $85.0 million and $83.9 million as of June 30, 2014
and December 31, 2013, respectively to the aggregate principal balance of $85.9 million.

The Senior Notes accrue interest at a rate of 1.0% until the earlier of (a) the completion of an equity offering by the
Company or its subsidiaries that results in proceeds of $40 million or more or (b) January 1, 2016. Thereafter, the
Senior Notes will accrue interest at a rate of three-month LIBOR plus 3.5% (the “Full Rate”). Interest on the Senior
Notes is paid on a quarterly basis and no principal payments are due until maturity on March 30, 2033.

The indentures governing the Senior Notes (the “Indentures”) contain certain restrictive covenants (the “Negative
Covenants”) subject to certain exceptions in the Indentures, including written consent of the holders of the Senior
Notes. The Negative Covenants prohibit the Company and its subsidiaries, from among other things, incurring debt,
permitting any lien upon any of its property or assets, making any cash dividend or distribution or liquidation
payment, acquiring shares of the Company or its subsidiaries, making payment on debt securities of the Company that
rank pari passu or junior to the Senior Notes, or disposing of any equity interest in its subsidiaries or all or
substantially all of the assets of its subsidiaries. The Negative Covenants remain in effect until both of the following
conditions are met: 1) the Senior Notes begin accruing interest at the Full Rate, and 2) the Company satisfies certain
financial covenants (the “Financial Covenants”). Satisfaction of the Financial Covenants requires the Company to
demonstrate on a consolidated basis that (1) its Tangible Net Worth is equal to or greater than $40 million, and (2)
either (a) the Interest Coverage Ratio is equal to or greater than 1.35x, or (b) the Leverage Ratio is not greater than
95%. As the Senior Notes were not accruing interest at the Full Rate, the Negative Covenants, as defined above, were
still in effect as of June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013. Compliance with the Financial Covenants is required only
when the Company seeks to take action prohibited by the Negative Covenants that has not been approved by the
holders of the Senior Notes.

As discussed in Note 3, the Company and the non-controlling members of StreetLinks entered into a purchase and sale
agreement with Assurant, pursuant to which Assurant purchased 100% of the outstanding membership units of
StreetLinks. The sale of a subsidiary is not prohibited by the Negative Covenants provided that the sale is at fair
market value and the proceeds are reinvested in the Company. As such, the Company was in compliance with all
Negative Covenants as of June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, and therefore the Company was under no obligation
to comply with the Financial Covenants during these periods.

Note Payable to Related Party – As detailed in Note 3, on April 16, 2014, the Company and Mr. Haslam agreed to
terminate the Unit Purchase Agreement. In full satisfaction of the Company's outstanding obligation under the Unit
Purchase Agreement, the Company transferred back to Mr. Haslam 1,218 StreetLinks membership units, which
represents the portion of the membership units attributable to the $3.9 million in unpaid installment payments and $0.2
million in interest remaining under the Unit Purchase Agreement.

As of December 31, 2013, current maturities of the note payable to Mr. Haslam under the Unit Purchase Agreement of
approximately $1.3 million and noncurrent maturities of $2.6 million are included in the other current liabilities and
other liabilities line items, respectively, in the Company's condensed consolidated balance sheets.

Capital Leases – The Company leases hardware and computer equipment under capital leases. These capital leases are
payable in 36 monthly installments and mature between August 2014 and June 2017. Current maturities of obligations
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under capital leases were approximately $0.2 million as of both June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013. Noncurrent
maturities of obligations under capital leases were approximately $0.2 million as of both June 30, 2014 and
December 31, 2013, respectively. Due to the immaterial nature of these obligations with regard to the Company's
financial statements as a whole, current maturities and noncurrent maturities of capital leases are included in the other
current liabilities and other liabilities line items, respectively, in the Company's condensed consolidated balance
sheets.

Note 8. Commitments and Contingencies

Contingencies – Prior to 2008, the Company originated, purchased, securitized, sold, invested in and serviced
residential nonconforming mortgage loans and mortgage securities. The Company has received indemnification and
loan repurchase demands with respect to alleged violations of representations and warranties (“defects”) made in loan
sale and securitization documents. These demands have been received substantially beginning in 2006 and have
continued into 2014. Prior to the Company ceasing the origination of loans in its mortgage lending business, it sold
loans to securitization trusts and other third parties and agreed to repurchase a loan due to missing documentation or
breaches of representations or warranties made in sale documents that materially adversely affected the value of the
loan. Beginning in 1997 and ending in 2007, affiliates of the Company sold loans to securitization trusts and third
parties with the potential of such repurchase obligations. The aggregate original principal balance of these loans was
$43.1 billion at the time of sale or securitization. The remaining principal balance of
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these loans is not available as these loans are serviced by third parties and may have been refinanced, sold or
liquidated. Claims to repurchase loans or to indemnify under securitization documents have not been acknowledged as
valid by the Company. In some cases, claims were made against affiliates of the Company that have ceased operations
and have no or limited assets. The Company has not repurchased any loans or made any such indemnification
payments since 2010.

Historically, repurchases of loans or indemnification of losses where a loan defect has been alleged have been
insignificant and any future losses for alleged loan defects have not been deemed to be probable or reasonably
estimable; therefore, the Company has recorded no reserves related to these claims. The Company does not use
internal groupings for purposes of determining the status of these loans. The Company is unable to develop an
estimate of the maximum potential amount of future payments related to repurchase demands because the Company
does not have access to information relating to loans sold and securitized and the number or amount of claims deemed
probable of assertion is not known nor is it reasonably estimated. Further, the validity of claims received remains
questionable. Also, considering that the Company completed its last sale or securitization of loans during 2007, the
Company believes that it will be difficult for a claimant to successfully validate any additional repurchase demands.
Management does not expect that the potential impact of claims will be material to the Company's financial
statements.

Pending Litigation – The Company is a party to various legal proceedings. Except as set forth below, these proceedings
are of an ordinary and routine nature.

Although it is not possible to predict the outcome of any legal proceeding, in the opinion of management, other than
the active proceedings described in detail below, proceedings and actions against the Company should not,
individually, or in the aggregate, have a material effect on the Company's financial condition, operations and liquidity.
Furthermore, due to the uncertainty of any potential loss as a result of pending litigation and due to the Company's
belief that an adverse ruling is not probable, the Company has not accrued a loss contingency related to the following
matters in its consolidated financial statements. However, a material outcome in one or more of the active proceedings
described below could have a material impact on the results of operations in a particular quarter or fiscal year.

On May 21, 2008, a purported class action case was filed in the Supreme Court of the State of New York, New York
County, by the New Jersey Carpenters' Health Fund, on behalf of itself and all others similarly situated. Defendants in
the case included NovaStar Mortgage Funding Corporation (“NMFC”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and
its individual directors, several securitization trusts sponsored by the Company ("affiliated defendants") and several
unaffiliated investment banks and credit rating agencies. The case was removed to the United States District Court for
the Southern District of New York. On June 16, 2009, the plaintiff filed an amended complaint. The plaintiff seeks
monetary damages, alleging that the defendants violated sections 11, 12 and 15 of the Securities Act of 1933, as
amended, by making allegedly false statements regarding mortgage loans that served as collateral for securities
purchased by the plaintiff and the purported class members. On August 31, 2009, the Company filed a motion to
dismiss the plaintiff's claims, which the court granted on March 31, 2011, with leave to amend. The plaintiff filed a
second amended complaint on May 16, 2011, and the Company again filed a motion to dismiss. On March 29, 2012,
the court dismissed the plaintiff's second amended complaint with prejudice and without leave to replead. The plaintiff
filed an appeal. On March 1, 2013, the appellate court reversed the judgment of the lower court, which had dismissed
the case. Also, the appellate court vacated the judgment of the lower court which had held that the plaintiff lacked
standing, even as a class representative, to sue on behalf of investors in securities in which plaintiff had not invested,
and the appellate court remanded the case back to the lower court for further proceedings. On April 23, 2013 the
plaintiff filed its memorandum with the lower court seeking a reconsideration of the earlier dismissal of plaintiff's
claims as to five offerings in which plaintiff was not invested. Given the early stage of the litigation, the Company
cannot provide an estimate of the range of any loss. The Company believes that the affiliated defendants have
meritorious defenses to the case and expects them to defend the case vigorously.
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On June 20, 2011, the National Credit Union Administration Board, as liquidating agent of U.S. Central Federal
Credit Union, filed an action against NMFC and numerous other defendants in the United States District Court for the
District of Kansas, claiming that the defendants issued or underwrote residential mortgage-backed securities pursuant
to allegedly false or misleading registration statements, prospectuses, and/or prospectus supplements. On October 12,
2011, the complaint was served on NMFC. On December 20, 2011, NMFC filed a motion to dismiss the plaintiff's
complaint and to strike certain paragraphs of the complaint. On July 25, 2012, the court granted the motion in part and
denied the motion in part. The plaintiff was granted leave to amend the complaint. On August 24, 2012, the plaintiff
filed an amended complaint making essentially the same claims against NMFC. On October 29, 2012, NMFC filed a
motion to dismiss the amended complaint. The defendants had claimed that the case should be dismissed based upon a
statute of limitations and sought an appeal of the court's denial of this defense. An interlocutory appeal of this issue
was allowed, and oral argument on the appeal occurred May 8, 2013. On August 27, 2013, the Tenth Circuit affirmed
the lower court’s denial of defendants’ motion to dismiss the plaintiff’s claims as being time barred; the appellate court
held that the Extender Statute, 12 U.S.C. §1787(b)(14) applied to plaintiff’s claims. On September 12, 2013, the lower
court denied NMFC’s motion to dismiss the amended complaint against NMFC. On June 16, 2014, the United States
Supreme Court granted a motion of NMFC and its co-defendants for certiorari and vacated the earlier ruling of Tenth
Circuit remanding the case back to the Tenth Circuit for further consideration in light of the Supreme Court’s decision
in CTS Corp. v. Waldburger, 573 U.S. ___ 2014. Additional briefs were filed with the 10th Circuit on July 11, 2014.
This litigation is in an early stage, and the Company cannot provide an estimate of the range of any loss. The
Company believes that NMFC has meritorious defenses to the case and expects it to defend the case vigorously.
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On February 28, 2013 the Federal Housing Finance Agency, as conservator for the Federal Home Loan Mortgage
Corporation (Freddie Mac) and on behalf of the Trustee of the NovaStar Mortgage Funding Trust, Series 2007-1 (the
"Trust"), a securitization trust in which the Company retains a residual interest, filed a summons with notice in the
Supreme Court of the State of New York, County of New York against Novation Companies, Inc. and NovaStar
Mortgage, Inc. ("NMI"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. The notice provides that this is a breach of
contract action with respect to certain, unspecified mortgage loans and defendant's failure to repurchase such loans
under the applicable agreements. Plaintiff alleges that defendants, from the closing date of the transaction that created
the Trust that mortgage loans that were sold to the Trust, were aware of the breach of the representations and
warranties made and failed to notice and cure such breaches, and due to the failure of defendants to cure any breach,
notice to defendants would have been futile. The summons with notice was not served until June 28, 2013. By letter
dated June 24, 2013, the Trustee of the Trust forwarded a notice from Freddie Mac alleging breaches of
representations and warranties with respect to 43 loans, as more fully set forth in included documentation. The 43
loans had an aggregate, original principal balance of about $6.5 million. On August 19, 2013, Deutsche Bank National
Trust Company, as Trustee, filed a complaint identifying alleged breaches of representations and warranties with
respect to seven loans that were included in the earlier list of 43 loans. Plaintiff also generally alleged a trust-wide
breach of representations and warranties by defendants with respect to loans sold and transferred to the trust. Plaintiff
seeks specific performance of repurchase obligations; compensatory, consequential, recessionary and equitable
damages for breach of contract; specific performance and damages for anticipatory breach of contract; and
indemnification (indemnification against NMI only). On October 9, 2013, the Company and NMI filed a motion to
dismiss plaintiff’s complaint. This motion to dismiss was withdrawn after plaintiff filed an amended complaint on
January 28, 2014, and on March 4, 2014 the Company and NMI filed a motion to dismiss the amended complaint.
This litigation is in an early stage, and the Company cannot provide an estimate of the range of any loss. The
Company believes that it has meritorious defenses to the case and expects to defend the case vigorously.

Note 9. Fair Value Accounting

Fair Value Measurements

The Company's valuation techniques are based upon observable and unobservable inputs. Observable inputs reflect
market data obtained from independent sources, while unobservable inputs reflect the Company's market assumptions.
These two types of inputs create the following fair value hierarchy:
•Level 1 – Valuations based on quoted prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities.
•Level 2 – Valuations based on observable inputs in active markets for similar assets and liabilities, other than Level 1
prices, such as quoted interest or currency exchange rates.
•Level 3 – Valuations based on significant unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity, such as
discounted cash flow methodologies based on internal cash flow forecasts.
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The following tables present for each of the fair value hierarchy levels, the Company's assets which are measured at
fair value on a recurring basis as of June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013 (dollars in thousands):

Fair Value Measurements at Reporting Date Using

Description Fair Value at
June 30, 2014

Quoted Prices in
Active Markets
for Identical
Assets
(Level 1)

Significant
Other
Observable
Inputs
(Level 2)

Significant
Unobservable
Inputs
(Level 3)

Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents:
Cash $7,616 $7,616 $— $—
Money market funds 28,143 28,143 — —
Commercial paper 2,899 — 2,899 —
Agency securities 922 — 922 —
Marketable securities, current:
Corporate notes and bonds 6,848 — 6,848 —
Agency securities 6,130 — 6,130 —
Mortgage securities – available-for-sale 3,552 — — 3,552
Marketable securities, non-current:
Corporate notes and bonds 4,554 — 4,554 —
Total $60,664 $35,759 $21,353 $3,552

Fair Value Measurements at Reporting Date Using

 Description Fair Value at
December 31, 2013

Quoted Prices in
Active Markets
for Identical
Assets
(Level 1)

Significant
Other
Observable
Inputs
(Level 2)

Significant
Unobservable
Inputs (Level 3)

Assets:
Mortgage securities – available-for-sale $3,728 $— $— $3,728

Valuation Methods and Processes

The Company determines the fair value of its cash equivalents and marketable securities based on pricing from our
service provider and market prices from industry-standard independent data providers. Such market prices may be
quoted prices in active markets for identical assets (Level 1 inputs) or pricing determined using inputs other than
quoted prices that are observable either directly or indirectly (Level 2 inputs), such as yield curve, volatility factors,
credit spreads, default rates, loss severity, current market and contractual prices for the underlying instruments or debt,
broker and dealer quotes, as well as other relevant economic measures.

To the extent observable inputs are not available, as is the case with the Company's mortgage securities, the Company
estimates fair value using present value techniques and generally does not have the option to choose other valuation
methods for these securities. The methods and processes used to estimate the fair value of the Company's mortgage
securities are discussed further below. There have been no significant changes to the Company's financial statements
as a result from changes to the Company's valuation techniques during the six months ended June 30, 2014.
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The Company's marketable securities are classified as available-for-sale and are reported at their estimated fair value
with unrealized gains and losses reported in accumulated other comprehensive income. To the extent that the cost
basis of the Company's marketable securities exceeds the fair value and the unrealized loss is considered to be other
than temporary, an impairment charge is recognized and the amount recorded in accumulated other comprehensive
income or loss is reclassified to earnings as a realized loss. The specific identification method is used in computing
realized gains or losses.

Mortgage securities - available for sale. As discussed above and in Note 4 to the condensed consolidated financial
statements, the Company's mortgage securities – available-for-sale, are measured at fair value. These securities are
valued at each reporting date using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) by discounting the expected cash flows
using market interest rates commensurate with the credit quality and duration of the investment.
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The Company uses the discount rate methodology for determining the fair value of its residual securities. The fair
value of the residual securities is estimated based on the present value of future expected cash flows to be received.
Management's best estimate of key assumptions, including credit losses, prepayment speeds, forward yield curves and
discount rates commensurate with the risks involved, are used in estimating future cash flows.

An independent entity has been engaged to prepare projected future cash flows of the Company's mortgage securities
for each reporting period (quarterly) used by management to estimate fair value. The Company's internal finance and
accounting staff reviews and monitors the work of the independent entity, including analysis of the assumptions used,
retrospective review and preparing an overall conclusion of the value and process. All other fair value analysis,
consisting of simple cash flow estimates and discounting techniques, is conducted internally by the Company's
internal financial staff. The Company's fair value process is conducted under the supervision of the Chief Financial
Officer.

The following table presents certain quantitative information about the significant unobservable inputs used in the fair
value measurement for items measured at fair value on a recurring basis using significant unobservable inputs (Level
3):

Description Valuation Techniques Significant Unobservable
Inputs Range

Assets:
Mortgage securities – available-for-sale Present value analysis Prepayment rates 3.8% – 12.5%

Weighted average life
(years) 2.0 – 2.0

The significant unobservable inputs used in the fair value measurement of mortgage securities – available-for-sale are
prepayment rates and the weighted average life for the underlying mortgage loan collateral. Using a faster (higher)
estimated prepayment rate would decrease the value of the securities. The Company uses a weighted average life of 2
years from the reporting date for the expected future estimated cash flows. The future cash flows are highly-dependent
upon the performance of the underlying collateral of mortgage loans. The nonperformance risk associated with the
collateral is the key reason the Company utilizes such a short weighted average life in its calculation. Assuming a
shorter weighted average life would decrease the estimated value of the mortgage securities. Alternatively, assuming a
longer weighted average life would increase the estimated value of the mortgage securities.

The following table provides a reconciliation of the beginning and ending balances for the Company's mortgage
securities – available-for-sale, which are measured at fair value on a recurring basis using significant unobservable
inputs (Level 3) for the six and three months ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 (dollars in thousands):

For the Six Months Ended
June 30,

For the Three Months Ended
June 30,

2014 2013 2014 2013
Balance, beginning of period $3,728 $3,906 $3,466 $3,295
Increases (decreases) to mortgage securities –
available-for-sale:
Accretion of income (A) 385 373 192 93
Proceeds from paydowns of securities (A) (385 ) (404 ) (156 ) (132 )
Mark-to-market value adjustment (176 ) (473 ) 50 146
Net (decrease) increase to mortgage securities –
available-for-sale (176 ) (504 ) 86 107

Balance, end of period $3,552 $3,402 $3,552 $3,402
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(A)
Cash received on mortgage securities with no cost basis was $3.0 million and $1.4 million for the six and three
months ended June 30, 2014, respectively and $2.0 million and $1.4 million for the six and three months ended
June 30, 2013, respectively.
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Adjustments to assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring and nonrecurring basis did not have a
material impact on the earnings of continuing operations for any period presented.

The following disclosure of the estimated fair value of financial instruments presents amounts that have been
determined using available market information and appropriate valuation methodologies. However, considerable
judgment is required to interpret market data to develop the estimates of fair value. Accordingly, the estimates
presented herein are not necessarily indicative of the amounts that could be realized in a current market exchange. The
use of different market assumptions or estimation methodologies could have a material impact on the estimated fair
value amounts. The fair value of short-term financial assets and liabilities, such as service fees receivable, notes
receivable, and accounts payable and accrued expenses are not included in the following table as their fair value
approximates their carrying value.

The estimated fair values of the Company's financial instruments are as follows as of June 30, 2014 and December 31,
2013 (dollars in thousands): 

As of June 30, 2014 As of December 31, 2013
Carrying Value Fair Value Carrying Value Fair Value

Financial assets:
Restricted cash $600 $453 $597 $369
Marketable securities 21,084 21,084 3,728 3,728
Financial liabilities:
Senior notes $84,957 $13,053 $83,867 $13,119
Note payable to related party — — 3,863 2,880

For the items in the table above not measured at fair value in the statement of financial position but for which the fair
value is disclosed, the fair value has been estimated using Level 3 methodologies, based on significant unobservable
inputs that are supported by little or no market activity, such as discounted cash flow calculations based on internal
cash flow forecasts. No assets or liabilities have been transferred between levels during any period presented.

Restricted cash – The fair value of restricted cash was estimated by discounting estimated future release of the cash
from restriction.

Senior notes – The fair value is estimated by discounting future projected cash flows using a discount rate
commensurate with the risks involved. The value of the Senior Notes was calculated assuming that the Company
would be required to pay interest at a rate of 1.0% per annum until January 2016, at which time the Company would
be required to start paying the Full Rate of three-month LIBOR plus 3.5% until maturity in March 2033. The
three-month LIBOR used in the analysis was projected using a forward interest rate curve.

Note payable to related party – As of December 31, 2013, the fair value of the note payable to related party was
estimated by discounting future projected principal and interest payment cash flows using a discount rate
commensurate with the risks involved. The future projected interest payments were calculated assuming the stated rate
of 4.0% per annum until maturity in March 2016. As detailed in Note 7, this obligation was terminated on April 16,
2014. As of December 31, 2013, current maturities of the note payable to related party of approximately $1.3 million
and noncurrent maturities of $2.6 million are included in the other current liabilities and other liabilities line items,
respectively, in the Company's condensed consolidated balance sheets.

Note 10. Income Taxes
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For the six and three months ended June 30, 2014 the Company recorded an income tax benefit from continuing
operations of approximately $7.2 million. The second quarter income tax benefit relates to current year operating
losses from continuing operations and the utilization of a portion of the Company's deferred tax assets to offset the
income tax expense from discontinued operations of approximately $7.8 million arising primarily from the gain on the
sale of StreetLinks. The net income tax expense of $0.6 million represents state income tax expense on the income
from discontinued operations arising due to variations in state tax law around both the ability and the period over
which to carryforward net operating losses. During the six months ended June 30, 2013 the Company recorded an
income tax expense of approximately $27.7 million, which represented a discrete event attributable to adjustment of
the valuation allowance against the Company's deferred tax assets during the second quarter of 2013.

During 2013, the Company determined that it was no longer more likely than not that it will recognize a portion of its
deferred tax assets. Therefore, as of both June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, the Company maintained a full
valuation allowance against its deferred tax assets of $266.3 million and $283.0 million, respectively. The Company's
determination of the extent to
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which its deferred tax assets will be realized requires the exercise of significant judgment, based in part on business
plans and expectations about future outcomes. In the event the actual results differ from these estimates in future
periods, the Company may need to adjust the valuation allowance, which could materially impact our financial
position and results of operations. The Company will continue to assess the need for a valuation allowance in future
periods.

As of June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, the total gross amount of unrecognized tax benefits was $1.0 million and
$0.7 million, respectively. These amounts also represent the total amount of unrecognized tax benefits that would
impact the effective tax rate in the respective periods. The Company anticipates an additional reduction of the
unrecognized tax benefits in the amount of $0.6 million due to the lapse of statute of limitations in the next twelve
months.

Note 11. Segment Reporting

As a result of the divestiture activity during the six months ended June 30, 2014, the Company now reviews, manages
and operates its business in only three segments: Corporate, Financial Intermediary, and Cloud SaaS. Corporate
operating results include mortgage securities retained from securitizations, corporate general and administrative
expenses, and, for 2013 only, the operating results of CorvisaCloud, as these results were not significant during the six
and three months ended June 30, 2013. The Financial Intermediary segment consists of the financial settlement
service fee income and related expenses from a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, Advent. The Cloud SaaS
segment represents service fee income and related expenses from the Company's wholly-owned subsidiary,
CorvisaCloud. Management evaluates segment performance based on income before income taxes, which is prior to
the allocation of losses attributable to the noncontrolling interests.

The following is a summary of the operating results of the Company's segments for the six months ended June 30,
2014 and 2013 and a summary of their financial positions as of June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013 (dollars in
thousands):

Corporate Financial
Intermediary Cloud SaaS Eliminations Total

For the Six Months Ended June 30, 2014
Service fee income $5,189 8,216 $1,526 $(4,328 ) $10,603
Interest income 3,407 — — (11 ) 3,396
Interest expense 1,594 1 9 (9 ) 1,595
Depreciation and amortization expense
(A) 518 $93 207 — 818

Loss from continuing operations before
income taxes (2,259 ) $1,097 (3,644 ) (1,822 ) (6,628 )

Additions to long-lived assets (B) 302 $38 713 — 1,053

As of June 30, 2014
Total assets (C) $65,056 $2,626 $11,096 $(7,982 ) $70,796

(A)
Amounts related to continuing operations are included in the cost of services and selling, general and
administrative expense line items on the condensed consolidated statements of operations, while amounts related
to discontinued operations are included in the (loss) income from discontinued operations, net of income taxes.

(B)Amount includes assets acquired under capital leases.

(C)Amount includes $1.0 million in cash and cash equivalents not classified as held for sale. See Note 3 for additionalinformation regarding the classification of Advent as held for sale.
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Corporate Financial
Intermediary Eliminations

Discontinued
Operations
(C)

Total

For the Six Months Ended June 30, 2013
Service fee income $4,452 8,091 $(4,173 ) $— $8,370
Interest income 2,725 — (320 ) — 2,405
Interest expense 1,583 308 (307 ) — 1,584
Depreciation and amortization expense
(A) 413 $127 — — 540

Loss from continuing operations before
income taxes (3,156 ) $633 (3,142 ) — (5,665 )

Additions to long-lived assets 1,577 $162 — — 1,739

As of December 31, 2013
Total assets (B)(D)(E) $25,535 $3,983 $(8,510 ) $13,034 $34,042

(A)
Amounts related to continuing operations are included in the cost of services and selling, general and
administrative expense line items on the condensed consolidated statements of operations, while amounts related
to discontinued operations are included in the (loss) income from discontinued operations, net of income taxes.

(B)Total assets of discontinued operations includes goodwill of $3.2 million resulting from the acquisition ofStreetLinks.

(C)See Note 3 for additional information regarding the financial position and operating results of discontinuedoperations.
(D)Corporate segment includes Cloud SaaS assets of $1.9 million as of December 31, 2013.

(E) Amount includes $1.5 million in cash and cash equivalents not classified as held for sale. See Note 3 for
additional information regarding the classification of Advent as held for sale.

The intersegment service fee income for the six and three months ended June 30, 2014 includes fees charged by the
Corporate segment to the Appraisal Management, Financial Intermediary, and Cloud SaaS segments for operational
support provided by the Corporate segment's employees. The intersegment interest income and interest expense
consists of interest charged by the Corporate segment to the Appraisal Management, Financial Intermediary, and
Cloud SaaS segments for borrowings. For the six months ended June 30, 2013, the intersegment service fee income
and interest amounts also include fees charged to the Logistics segment.

The following is a summary of the operating results of the Company's segments for the three months ended June 30,
2014 and 2013 (dollars in thousands):

Corporate Financial
Intermediary Cloud SaaS Eliminations Total

For the Three Months Ended June 30, 2014
Service fee income $2,499 $1,335 $674 $(1,576 ) $2,932
Interest income 1,610 — — — 1,610
Interest expense 799 1 — (1 ) 799
Depreciation and amortization expense
(A) 265 49 108 — 422

Loss income from continuing operations
before income taxes (1,446 ) (1,507 ) (2,265 ) (289 ) (5,507 )

Additions to long-lived assets (B) 170 — 467 — 637
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Amounts related to continuing operations are included in the cost of services and selling, general and
administrative expense line items on the condensed consolidated statements of operations, while amounts related
to discontinued operations are included in the (loss) income from discontinued operations, net of income taxes.

(B)Amount includes assets acquired under capital leases.
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Corporate Financial
Intermediary Eliminations Total

For the Three Months Ended June 30, 2013
Service fee income $2,250 1,471 $(2,068 ) $1,653
Interest income 1,546 — (58 ) 1,488
Interest expense 799 52 (51 ) 800
Depreciation and amortization expense (A) 230 $68 — 298
Loss from continuing operations before income taxes (2,055 ) $(652 ) (1,645 ) (4,352 )
Additions to long-lived assets (B) 326 $79 — 405

(A)
Amounts related to continuing operations are included in the cost of services and selling, general and
administrative expense line items on the condensed consolidated statements of operations, while amounts related
to discontinued operations are included in the (loss) income from discontinued operations, net of income taxes.

(B)Amount includes assets acquired under capital leases.
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Note 12. Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing net earnings available to common shareholders by the weighted
average number of shares of common stock outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings per share include the
effect of conversions of stock options and nonvested shares. The computations of basic and diluted earnings per share
for the six and three months ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 (dollars in thousands, except share and per share amounts)
are as follows:

For the Six Months Ended
June 30,

For the Three Months Ended
June 30,

2014 2013 2014 2013
Numerator:
Net income (loss) from continuing operations $602 $(33,331 ) $1,751 $(30,880 )
Net income from discontinued operations 40,405 7,417 38,493 4,311
Net income (loss) 41,007 (25,914 ) 40,244 (26,569 )
Less net (loss) income attributable to noncontrolling
interests — (77 ) (33 ) 24

Net income (loss) available to common shareholders$41,007 $(25,837 ) $40,277 $(26,593 )

Denominator:
Weighted average common shares outstanding –
basic 90,866,933 90,716,933 90,866,933 90,716,933

Weighted average common shares outstanding –
dilutive:
Weighted average common shares outstanding –
basic 90,866,933 90,716,933 90,866,933 90,716,933

Stock options — — — —
Nonvested shares 37,159 — 73,910 —
Weighted average common shares outstanding –
dilutive 90,904,092 90,716,933 90,940,843 90,716,933

Basic earnings per share:
Net income (loss) from continuing operations $0.01 $(0.37 ) $0.02 $(0.34 )
Net income from discontinued operations 0.44 0.08 0.42 0.05
Net income (loss) 0.45 (0.29 ) 0.44 (0.29 )
Less net (loss) income attributable to noncontrolling
interests — (0.01 ) — —

Net income (loss) available to common shareholders$0.45 $(0.28 ) $0.44 $(0.29 )

Diluted earnings per share:
Net income (loss) from continuing operations $0.01 $(0.37 ) $0.02 $(0.34 )
Net income from discontinued operations 0.44 0.08 0.42 0.05
Net income (loss) 0.45 (0.29 ) 0.44 (0.29 )
Less net (loss) income attributable to noncontrolling
interests — (0.01 ) — —

Net income (loss) available to common shareholders$0.45 $(0.28 ) $0.44 $(0.29 )
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The following weighted-average options to purchase shares of Common Stock were outstanding during each period
presented, but were not included in the computation of diluted earnings per share because the calculated number of
shares assumed to be repurchased was greater than the number of shares to be obtained upon exercise, therefore, the
effect would be antidilutive (in thousands, except exercise prices):

For the Six Months Ended
June 30,

For the Three Months Ended
June 30,

2014 2013 2014 2013
Number of stock options 8,675 8,362 8,856 8,578
Weighted average exercise price of stock options $0.68 $0.69 $0.68 $0.68

During the second quarter of 2014, the Company granted 3.0 million options to purchase shares of Common Stock at a
weighted average exercise price of $0.51. The weighted average impact of 0.2 million and 0.4 million options are
included in the table above for the six and three months ended June 30, 2014, respectively. During the six months
ended June 30, 2013, the Company granted 0.6 million options to purchase shares of Common Stock at a weighted
average exercise price of $0.53. The weighted average impact of 0.3 million and 0.6 million are included in the table
above for the six and three months ended June 30, 2013, respectively. There were no options granted during the
second quarter of 2013.

The Company had approximately 0.6 million and 0.8 million nonvested shares outstanding as of June 30, 2014 and
June 30, 2013, respectively, which have original cliff vesting schedules ranging between five and ten years. Of these,
the weighted average impact of approximately 0.6 million and 0.5 million nonvested shares for the six and three
months ended June 30, 2014, respectively and 0.8 million nonvested shares for the six and three months ended June
30, 2013 were not included in the calculation of earnings per share because they were anti-dilutive.
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Item 2. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Forward-Looking Statements
Statements in this report regarding Novation Companies, Inc. and its business, that are not historical facts are
“forward-looking statements” within the meaning of Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.
Forward-looking statements are those that predict or describe future events, do not relate solely to historical matters
and include statements regarding management's beliefs, estimates, projections, and assumptions with respect to,
among other things, our future operations, business plans and strategies, as well as industry and market conditions, all
of which are subject to change at any time without notice. Words such as "believe," "expect," "anticipate," "promise,"
"plan," and other expressions or words of similar meanings, as well as future or conditional auxiliary verbs such as
"would," "should," "could," or "may" are generally intended to identify forward-looking statements. Actual results and
operations for any future period may vary materially from those discussed herein. Some important factors that could
cause actual results to differ materially from those anticipated include: our ability to manage our business; variability
in the home mortgage or refinancing market that affects the demand for real estate appraisal services; changes in the
regulatory environments within which our subsidiaries operate; our ability to develop new relationships and maintain
existing relationships with both customers and business partners; decreases in cash flows from our mortgage
securities; our ability to remain in compliance with the agreements governing our indebtedness; the outcome of
litigation actions pending against us or other legal contingencies; our compliance with applicable local, state and
federal laws and regulations; compliance with new accounting pronouncements; the impact of general economic
conditions; and the risks that are from time to time included in our filings with the Securities and Exchange
Commission (“SEC”), including the Company's most recent Annual Report on Form 10-K and this report on Form 10-Q.
Other factors not presently identified may also cause actual results to differ. This report on Form 10-Q speaks only as
of its date and we expressly disclaim any duty to update the information herein except as required by applicable law.

Executive Overview
The following Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Operating Results (“MD&A”)
should be read in conjunction with the preceding unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements of Novation
Companies, Inc. and its subsidiaries (the “Company” or ”Novation" or “we” or “us”) and the notes thereto as well as the
Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2013. MD&A includes the following
sections:

•Corporate Overview, Background and Strategy – a brief overview of our business, current strategy, and significantrecent events.

•
Critical Accounting Policies – an update, since December 31, 2013, of our discussion of accounting policies that
impact our financial statements and involve a high degree of judgment or complexity. This section also includes the
impact of new accounting standards.

•Consolidated Results of Operations – an analysis of our results of operations for the six months ended June 30, 2014and 2013 as presented in our unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.

•Segment Results of Operations – an analysis of our results of operations for the six months ended June 30, 2014 and2013 as presented in our unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements for our reporting segments.
•Liquidity and Capital Resources – an analysis of our cash flows and financial commitments.

Corporate Overview, Background and Strategy
Our Business
Novation Companies, Inc. (the “Company” or "Novation” or "we” or “us”) is a Maryland corporation formed on September
13, 1996.
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CorvisaCloud, LLC (CorvisaCloud) is a developer and seller of proprietary cloud-based contact center software and
private branch exchange (PBX) systems. In addition, CorvisaCloud provides implementation consulting services for
clients of a leading customer relationship management (CRM) software. We acquired CorvisaCloud in 2012. It was
originally named IVR Central LLC and we rebranded the business to CorvisaCloud in 2013. We own 100% of
CorvisaCloud.

Advent provides financial settlement services for professional tax preparers nationwide. On June 6, 2014 the
Company announced that it was exploring alternatives for Advent with the goal of selling or exiting the business by
the end of 2014. As a result, the operations of Advent will be included in continuing operations until the date on which
the business is sold or, in the event the business is abandoned, the run-off operations have ceased. The assets and
liabilities of Advent have been classified as held for sale as of June 30, 2014. See Note 3 to the condensed
consolidated financial statements for additional information regarding these developments.

On April 16, 2014, the Company and the non-controlling members of StreetLinks, a national residential appraisal and
mortgage real estate valuation management services company, entered into a purchase and sale agreement with
Assurant Services, LLC,
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a subsidiary of Assurant, Inc. ("Assurant"), pursuant to which Assurant purchased 100% of the outstanding
membership units of StreetLinks. See Note 3 to the condensed consolidated financial statements for additional
information regarding this transaction.

In each of these businesses we invested at the early stage of the company’s life with the goal of growing each business
to its maximum potential. When we acquire businesses, our goal is to own indefinitely. However, we may consider the
sale of a business or businesses if we believe we can invest the proceeds from a sale elsewhere at a better risk adjusted
long term return for shareholders. This may include investing capital in a business we already own or investing in an
unrelated business not yet identified.

On April 16, 2014 we announced a significant strategic shift for Novation with the sale of StreetLinks and the
decision to focus our resources primarily on the business of CorvisaCloud. This decision was based largely on the
Company's belief that CorvisaCloud represents a better opportunity for Novation to build long-term shareholder value
due to CorvisaCloud's CorvisaOne™ technology platform and the size of its target customer base. What follows is a
detailed discussion of the CorvisaCloud business. Note 11 to the condensed consolidated financial statements set forth
in Item 1 of this report, which is incorporated by reference, includes information about the operating results and
financial position of the segments to which this business relates.

CORVISACLOUD, LLC

CorvisaCloud is a provider of cloud-based, proprietary communication software under the brand CorvisaOne™ and
implementation consulting services for its own clients as well as clients of a leading customer relationship
management (CRM) software provider.

CorvisaOne™ is a full contact center suite including both inbound and outbound contact center functionality as well as
full private branch exchange (PBX) phone system functionality. Features of the communications software include
interactive voice response, automated call distribution, campaign dialing, and a variety of other services, all of which
are delivered to clients as part of a comprehensive, fully-hosted cloud solution. The software is fully integrated with
the leading CRM provider and can be integrated with other third party software solutions via our advanced web
service, JavaScript and platform integration solutions. CorvisaCloud's target customers are businesses of all sizes in all
industries, anywhere in the world.

We acquired CorvisaCloud in October 2012 and set out to build a complete cloud-based contact center software
solution. By joining the years of contact center operating experience possessed by Novation’s leadership team with the
technology team acquired through the CorvisaCloud acquisition, we believe we have built a best-in-class contact
center software solution. In addition to the product offering, CorvisaCloud has built its product as part of a platform
that enables its customers and others to develop their own tools to tie into CorvisaCloud's product offering.

In addition to the benefits associated with cloud-based technology solutions such as security, scalability, reliability,
rapid deployment and low cost, additional business benefits to customers using CorvisaCloud's technology
product/platform include:

Integrated Cloud PBX (phone system) within CorvisaCloud's contact center application. This integration enables
executives and contact center employees to be on the same platform and eliminates the need for separate contact
center and PBX vendors.

Platform in addition to CorvisaCloud's product. CorvisaCloud's platform provides a highly configurable platform that
allows for the creation or editing of voice and SMS applications utilizing Summit, CorvisaCloud's Lua-based
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programming language. Applications built on the CorvisaOne™ platform are fully hosted on the CorvisaCloud network
that provides scalability, redundancy, backup, testing frameworks and other features required for enterprise-class
applications. Existing applications or those developed by third-party developers can also easily be integrated through
our open APIs. This makes it easy for developers to scale with their application and effectively support their product
while eliminating the need to manage independent server and hosting environments.

Contact and Campaign Manager. CorvisaOne™ includes a highly scalable contact/lead management system allowing for
dynamic management of millions of contact/lead records, including real-time assignment to dialing campaigns. This
functionality eliminates the need to store and manage complex campaign logic in third-party systems or manual
spreadsheets. In addition, CorvisaOne™ supports real-time synchronization with leading CRM systems to allow
customers to work seamlessly within their CRM.

Redundant Instance-based Architecture. CorvisaCloud's highly scalable, instance-based architecture allows
CorvisaOne™ to scale to support a worldwide presence while providing customer benefits such as read access to their
client data, segmented client data and a highly redundant architecture.

Combined Telecom and Production Reporting. As business operators ourselves, we believe strongly in the importance
of closely aligning telecommunications and production data to give greater visibility into overall business operations.
The
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CorvisaOne™ product is tightly integrated with leading CRM systems to ensure accurate and comprehensive business
reporting.

CorvisaCloud derives its revenue from software subscription fees for its product and from telecommunications
minutes used. CorvisaCloud also derives revenue from professional service fees charged for enhanced implementation
requirements of its contact center solution as well as CRM implementation services.

While CorvisaCloud is still in the initial phases of launching its product, our plan over time is to sell CorvisaCloud's
product and services through its direct sales force which is comprised of telephone sales personnel located regionally.
For larger opportunities CorvisaCloud will send its implementation teams on site in a consulting role to help onboard
clients.

CorvisaCloud's marketing strategy is to promote its brand and generate quality leads for its sales force. CorvisaCloud's
primary marketing activities will consist of:

•Press and industry analyst relations for third-party validation of the CorvisaCloud offering and value proposition
•Attendance at user conferences and trade show events
•Search engine marketing and advertising to drive leads to the CorvisaCloud sales force
•Use of customer testimonials and referrals
•Leads from the CorvisaCloud CRM implementation practice

On April 23, 2014, the Company announced that it would be devoting up to $30 million of the proceeds from the
StreetLinks sale to CorvisaCloud. The additional capital will be used to expand CorvisaCloud's sales, marketing and
operational development efforts and, potentially, fund potential acquisitions. The funds will also be used to accelerate
product development and customer acquisition of CorvisaCloud's CorvisaOne™ contact center software products and
platform. During the second quarter, the Company contributed approximately $10 million of the allotted $30 million
to CorvisaCloud.

Our Strategy
Management is focused on building its operating subsidiaries with a focus on long-term value creation. As previously
noted, on April 16, 2014 we announced a significant strategic shift for Novation with the sale of StreetLinks and the
decision to focus our resources primarily on the business of CorvisaCloud. Given the early-stage nature of this
business, it may not contribute to quarterly earnings for some time but we believe CorvisaCloud represents a solid
investment with the opportunity for future earnings and equity value creation that will benefit shareholders. Key
performance measures for executive management are:

•generating income and long-term value for our shareholders, and

•maintaining and/or generating adequate liquidity to sustain us and allow us to take advantage of acquisitionopportunities.

The following key performance metrics are derived from our condensed consolidated financial statements for the
periods presented and should be read in conjunction with the more detailed information therein and with the disclosure
included in this report under the heading “Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results
of Operations.”

Table 1 – Summary of Financial Highlights and Key Performance Metrics (dollars in thousands; except per share
amounts)
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For the Six Months Ended
June 30,
2014 2013

Net income (loss) available to common shareholders per diluted share $0.45 $(0.28 )

As of
June 30,
2014

December 31,
2013

Unrestricted cash and cash equivalents $39,580 $7,222

Significant Recent Events
On April 16, 2014 the Company announced a significant strategic shift with the sale of StreetLinks, which is
discussed below, and the decision to focus our resources primarily on the business of CorvisaCloud. This decision was
based largely on the Company's firm belief that CorvisaCloud represents a better opportunity for Novation to build
long-term shareholder value. On June 6, 2014 the Company announced that it was exploring alternatives for Advent
with the goal of selling or exiting the business
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by the end of 2014. As a result, the operations of Advent will be included in continuing operations until the date on
which the business is sold or, in the event the business is abandoned, the run-off operations have ceased. Based on the
Company's analysis of the facts and circumstances existing as of June 30, 2014, which included an assessment as to
the progress of discussions with potential buyers, the Company classified Advent as held for sale in accordance with
the relevant accounting guidance. See Note 3 to the condensed consolidated financial statements for additional
information regarding these developments.

Critical Accounting Policies
In our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2013, we disclose critical accounting policies
that require management to use significant judgment or that require significant estimates. Management regularly
reviews the selection and application of our critical accounting policies. There have been no updates to the critical
accounting policies contained in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2013.

Impact of Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements
In May 2014, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Updated ("ASU") 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Topic 606), which outlines a single comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for revenue
arising from contracts with customers and supersedes most current revenue recognition guidance, including
industry-specific guidance. The ASU applies to all contracts with customers except those that are within the scope of
other topics in the FASB Accounting Standards Codification. Compared with current U.S. GAAP, the ASU also
requires significantly expanded disclosures about revenue recognition. The ASU is effective for annual reporting
periods (including interim reporting periods within those periods) beginning after December 15, 2016. Early
application is not permitted. The Company is evaluating the impact of ASU 2014-09 on its consolidated financial
statements and related disclosures. The Company has not yet selected a transition method nor has it determined the
effect of the standard on its ongoing financial reporting.

In April 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-08, Presentation of Financial Statements (Topic 205) and Property, Plant,
and Equipment (Topic 360): Reporting Discontinued Operations and Disclosures of Disposals of Components of an
Entity, which amends the definition of a discontinued operation in ASC 205-20 and requires entities to provide
additional disclosures about discontinued operations as well as disposal transactions that do not meet the
discontinued-operations criteria. The FASB issued the ASU to provide more decision-useful information and to make
it more difficult for a disposal transaction to qualify as a discontinued operation. The ASU is effective prospectively
for all disposals (except disposals classified as held for sale before
the adoption date) or components initially classified as held for sale in periods beginning on or after December 15,
2014. Early adoption is permitted. The impact of the adoption of ASU 2014-08 on the Company's financial statements
will be based on future disposal activity.

In September 2013, the U.S. Department of the Treasury and the IRS released final regulations providing guidance on
the application of IRC Section 263(a) to amounts paid to acquire, produce, or improve tangible property, as well as
rules for materials and supplies (“Tangible Property Regulations”). While the final regulations are generally effective for
taxable years beginning on or after January 1, 2014, taxpayers are permitted to early adopt provisions for years
beginning on or after January 1, 2012. This guidance did not have a significant impact on the Company's financial
statements.

In July 2013, the FASB issued ASU 2013-11, Income Taxes (Topic 740): Presentation of an Unrecognized Tax
Benefit When a Net Operating Loss Carryforward, a Similar Tax Loss, or a Tax Credit Carryforward Exists (a
consensus of the FASB Emerging Issues Task Force), which provides guidance on financial statement presentation of
an unrecognized tax benefit when a net operating loss (NOL) carryforward, a similar tax loss, or a tax credit
carryforward exists. The FASB's objective in issuing this ASU is to eliminate diversity in practice resulting from a
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lack of guidance on this topic in current U.S. GAAP. This ASU applies to all entities with unrecognized tax benefits
that also have tax loss or tax credit carryforwards in the same tax jurisdiction as of the reporting date and is effective
for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2013, and interim periods within those years. This guidance did not have
a significant impact on the Company's financial statements.

Consolidated Results of Operations
Service Fee Income and Cost of Services
On a consolidated basis, service fee income increased to $10.6 million for the six months ended June 30, 2014 from
$8.4 million for the six months ended June 30, 2013. For the three months ended June 30, 2014 service fee income
increased to $2.9 million from $1.7 million for the prior year period. The increase in all periods is driven primarily by
the growth of CorvisaCloud and its customer base. In addition, service fee income for the six and three months ended
June 30, 2014 includes approximately $1.0 million of professional service fees earned by the ongoing entity under the
transition services agreement with Assurant, while cost of services for the same periods includes approximately $0.6
million of salaries and related expenses incurred to provide these services.
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Interest Income – Mortgage Securities
Interest income on the marketable securities we own increased to approximately $3.4 million during the six months
ended June 30, 2014 compared to $2.4 million during the six months ended June 30, 2013. During the three months
ended June 30, 2014, interest income on marketable securities totaled $1.6 million compared to $1.5 million during
the same period in 2013. The increase in all periods was attributable to our mortgage securities and was due primarily
to lower than anticipated losses on the underlying loan collateral, which led certain securities to begin cash-flowing
during the current year period after extended periods of inactivity. Management does not expect this trend to continue
on a long-term basis. Instead, the Company expects interest income and cash flow from these securities to decline as
the principal on the underlying loan collateral is paid or written down or off.

Selling, General and Administrative
On a consolidated basis, selling, general and administrative expenses increased to $13.0 million for the six months
ended June 30, 2014 from $11.5 million for the six months ended June 30, 2013. For the quarter, selling, general and
administrative expenses increased to $6.6 million from $5.6 million for prior year period. The increase in all periods
was driven largely by the operations of the Company's Cloud SaaS segment, which saw increases in headcount,
marketing and promotional activities, professional services, and IT support costs as this segment continues to focus on
growing its existing customer base and enhancing its product offerings and features.

Other Income
Other income was not material during the six and three months ended June 30, 2014. During the six months ended
June 30, 2013, other income totaled approximately $1.4 million, which was primarily attributable to the recovery of
credit losses related to a note receivable due from ITS Financial, LLC (“ITS”). Prior to 2013, the Company, based on the
existing facts and circumstances surrounding ITS, had recorded a full provision for credit losses of approximately $1.1
million related to this note. The note was paid in full during the first quarter of 2013.

Interest Expense
Interest expense was materially consistent period over period, with the Company incurring approximately $1.6 million
during the six months ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 and $0.8 million for the three months ended June 30, 2014 and
2013. See Note 7 to the condensed consolidated financial statements for additional information regarding the
Company's borrowings.

Income Tax Benefit (Expense)
For the six and three months ended June 30, 2014 the Company recorded an income tax benefit from continuing
operations of approximately $7.2 million, which relates to current year operating losses from continuing operations
and the utilization of a portion of the Company's deferred tax assets to offset the income tax expense from
discontinued operations. During the six months ended June 30, 2013 the Company recorded an income tax expense of
was approximately $27.7 million, which represented a discrete event attributable to adjustment of the valuation
allowance against the Company's deferred tax assets during the second quarter of 2013. See Note 10 to the condensed
consolidated financial statements for further details regarding the Company's income tax provision and deferred tax
assets.

Segment Results of Operations
Cloud SaaS
We earn call center technology fees through software licenses, inbound and outbound minute usage, ancillary fees,
and implementation services. Once implemented, clients pay a software as a service (SaaS) fee for a contact center
seat license or PBX license, as well as a per minute fee for inbound and outbound minutes used. Minute fees can also
be generated from the use of our interactive voice response software. Cost of Services represents both the direct and
other costs of providing these services, including but not limited to software development, fees to third party
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telecommunications carriers, compensation-related expenses, and other expenses necessary to complete services
performed.

We earn professional service fees for providing CRM implementation, support and administrative services to our
clients. Cost of Services includes the direct costs of providing these services, which consist primarily of
compensation-related expenses.
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Following is an analysis of the results of operations from the Cloud SaaS segment.

Table 4 – Cloud SaaS Segment Operations (dollars in thousands, except unit amounts)

For the Six Months Ended
June 30,

For the Three Months
Ended
June 30,

2014 2014
Total % Total %

Service fee income:
Professional services $957 62.7  % $385 57.1  %
Call center technology 569 37.3 289 42.9
Total service fee income 1,526 100.0 674 100.0

Cost of services 2,206 144.6 1,076 159.6
Selling, general and administrative expense 2,962 194.1 1,870 277.4
Total expenses 5,168 338.7 2,946 437.1

Other (expense) income, net (2 ) (0.1 ) 7 1.0

Net loss before income taxes $(3,644 ) (238.8 )% $(2,265 ) (336.1 )%

Service Fee Income
Service fee income for the Cloud SaaS segment totaled $1.5 million and $0.7 million during the six and three months
ended June 30, 2014, respectively. Service fee income was comprised primarily of professional service fees related to
implementations of third party CRM software. In addition to being a significant source of revenue for CorvisaCloud
during the current quarter and for the foreseeable future, these implementation services are expected to serve as a lead
source for CorvisaCloud's CorvisaOne™ suite, which was launched during the fourth quarter of 2013.

Cost of Services
Cost of services totaled $2.2 million for the six months ended June 30, 2014 and $1.1 million for the three months
ended June 30, 2014. This amount consists of the direct costs of providing professional and other services, in addition
to other compensation-related expenses, depreciation, software licenses, and IT support costs. As this segment is still
in the early stages of development, Management continues to identify and explore opportunities to scale the business
and improve the efficiency of operations with the intent to generate positive margins.

Selling, General and Administrative
Selling, general and administrative expenses for the six and three months ended June 30, 2014 totaled $3.0 million and
$1.9 million, respectively. This amount is comprised primarily of compensation-related expenses, marketing and
promotional expenses, professional services, and IT support costs, as the Company continues to develop, maintain and
expand its IT infrastructure and support staff to accommodate the anticipated growth of this segment. As this segment
is still in the early stages of development, selling, general and administrative expenses are significantly higher as a
percentage of service fee income than we would anticipate going forward. As we continue to grow and develop this
business, we anticipate this percentage will decline, as many of these costs should not increase proportionate to
production.
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Financial Intermediary
Following is a summary of the results of operations from the Financial Intermediary segment. As discussed in Note 3
to the condensed consolidated financial statements, on June 6, 2014 the Company announced that it was exploring
alternatives for Advent with the goal of selling or exiting the business by the end of 2014. As a result, the operations
of Advent will be included in continuing operations until the date on which the business is sold or, in the event the
business is abandoned, the run-off operations have ceased. The assets and liabilities of Advent have been classified as
held for sale as of June 30, 2014.

Table 3 – Financial Intermediary Segment Operations (dollars in thousands, except unit amounts)
For the Six Months Ended
June 30,

For the Three Months Ended
June 30,

2014 2013 2014 2013
Total Total Total Total

Total service fee income $8,216 $8,091 $1,335 $1,471
Net income (loss) before income taxes $1,097 $633 $(1,507 ) $(652 )

The operations of the financial intermediary segment improved year over year despite a decrease in settlement
volume. This improvement was driven primarily by favorable changes to the rebate and incentive programs offered by
the Company coupled with more favorable pricing terms with our third party service providers when compared to the
six and three months ended June 30, 2013.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
As of June 30, 2014, we had approximately $39.6 million in unrestricted cash and cash equivalents and $0.6 million of
restricted cash, which is included in the other noncurrent assets line item on the condensed consolidated balance sheet.
In addition, the Company held approximately $17.4 million in corporate notes and bonds and agency securities with
average remaining maturities between four and eighteen months. There securities are classified as available for sale as
of June 30, 2014 and are included in the marketable securities, current and marketable securities, non-current line
items on the condensed consolidated balance sheet.

Our current projections indicate that sufficient cash and cash flows are and will be available to meet payment needs.
However, our mortgage securities cash flows are volatile and uncertain, and the amounts we receive could vary
materially from our projections. Further, given the early stage nature of the CorvisaCloud business, it may not
contribute to quarterly earnings for some time, as it invests for long-term growth. However, we believe that the
proceeds from the StreetLinks sale will be sufficient to offset any reductions in our mortgage securities cash flows, as
well as absorb the cash needs necessary to grow the CorvisaCloud business to the point where it is able to generate
positive cash flows on a consistent basis. As discussed under the heading “Item 1. Legal Proceedings” of Part II of this
report, we are the subject of various legal proceedings, the outcomes of which are uncertain. We may also face
demands in the future that are unknown to us today related to our legacy lending and servicing operations.
Management believes that its current operations and its available cash are sufficient for the Company to discharge its
liabilities and meet its commitments in the normal course of business.

The indentures governing the Senior Notes (the “Indentures”) contain restrictive covenants (the “Negative Covenants”)
subject to exceptions in the Indentures, including written consent of the holders of the Senior Notes. The Negative
Covenants prohibit NCI and its subsidiaries, from among other things, incurring debt, permitting any lien upon any of
its property or assets, making any cash dividend or distribution or liquidation payment, acquiring our shares or equity
in our subsidiaries, making payment on our debt securities that rank pari passu or junior to the Senior Notes, or
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disposing of any equity interest in our subsidiaries or all or substantially all of the assets of our subsidiaries. The
Senior Notes accrue interest at a rate of 1.0% until the earlier of (a) the completion of an equity offering by NCI or our
subsidiaries that results in proceeds of $40 million or more or (b) January 1, 2016. Thereafter, the Senior Notes will
accrue interest at a rate of three-month LIBOR plus 3.5% (the “Full Rate”). Interest on the Senior Notes is paid on a
quarterly basis and no principal payments are due until maturity on March 30, 2033. The Negative Covenants remain
in effect until both of the following conditions are met: 1) the Senior Notes begin accruing interest at the Full Rate,
and 2) the Company satisfies certain financial covenants (the “Financial Covenants”). Satisfaction of the Financial
Covenants requires the Company to demonstrate on a consolidated basis that (1) its Tangible Net Worth is equal to or
greater than $40 million, and (2) either (a) the Interest Coverage Ratio is equal to or greater than 1.35x, or (b) the
Leverage Ratio is not greater than 95%. As the Senior Notes were not accruing interest at the Full Rate, the Negative
Covenants, as defined above, were still in effect as of June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013. Compliance with the
Financial Covenants is required only when the Company seeks to take action prohibited by the Negative Covenants
that has not been approved by the holders of the Senior Notes.
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As discussed in Note 3, the Company and the non-controlling members of StreetLinks entered into a purchase and sale
agreement with Assurant, pursuant to which Assurant purchased 100% of the outstanding membership units of
StreetLinks. The sale of a subsidiary is not prohibited by the Negative Covenants, provided that the sale is at fair
market value and the proceeds are reinvested in the Company. As such, the Company was in compliance with all
Negative Covenants as of June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, and therefore the Company was under no obligation
to comply with the Financial Covenants during these periods.

There have been no significant changes to the Company's contractual obligations as presented in the Company's
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2013.

Overview of Cash Flow for the Six Months Ended June 30, 2014 
The following table provides a summary of our operating, investing and financing cash flows as taken from our
condensed consolidated statements of cash flows for the six months ended June 30, 2014 and 2013.

Table 5 – Summary of Operating, Investing and Financing Cash Flows (dollars in thousands)
For the Six Months Ended
June 30,
2014 2013

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows:
Cash (used in) provided by operating activities of continuing operations $(2,521 ) $641
Cash flows provided by investing activities of continuing operations 36,081 447
Cash flows (used in) provided by financing activities of continuing operations (1,202 ) 2,603

Operating Activities
The decrease in net cash flows provided by operating activities from $0.6 million during the six months ended June
30, 2013 to $2.5 million of net cash flows used in operating activities during the six months ended June 30, 2014 is
driven primarily by the operations of CorvisaCloud.

Investing Activities
The increase in the net cash flows provided by investing activities is due primarily to the cash proceeds received from
the sale of StreetLinks offset by declines in the cash received from paydowns of notes receivable and purchases of
marketable securities.

Financing Activities
The decrease in the net cash flows provided by financing activities when comparing the six months ended June 30,
2014 and 2013 is due to a decrease in cash received from distributions of excess StreetLinks capital, as determined in
accordance with the StreetLinks operating agreement. Further contributing to the decrease in cash flows provided by
financing activities is the increase in cash payments for capital contributions to discontinued entities.

Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

As a smaller reporting company, we are not required to provide the information required by this Item.

Item 4. Controls and Procedures
Disclosure Controls and Procedures 
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The Company maintains a system of disclosure controls and procedures that are designed to ensure that information
required to be disclosed by the Company in reports that it files or submits under the federal securities laws, including
this report, is recorded, processed, summarized and reported, within the time periods specified in the applicable rules
and forms, and that it is accumulated and communicated to our management, including our principal executive officer
and principal financial officer, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

Company's principal executive officer and principal financial officer evaluated the Company's disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(d)) as of the end of the period covered by this
report and concluded that the Company's controls and procedures were effective.
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Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting
There were no changes in our internal controls over financial reporting during the three months ended June 30, 2014
that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal controls over financial
reporting.
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PART II. OTHER INFORMATION

Item 1. Legal Proceedings
Pending Litigation.
The Company is a party to various legal proceedings. Except as set forth below, these proceedings are of an ordinary
and routine nature.

Although it is not possible to predict the outcome of any legal proceeding, in the opinion of management, other than
the active proceedings described in detail below, proceedings and actions against the Company should not,
individually, or in the aggregate, have a material effect on the Company's financial condition, operations and liquidity.
Furthermore, due to the uncertainty of any potential loss as a result of pending litigation and due to the Company's
belief that an adverse ruling is not probable, the Company has not accrued a loss contingency related to the following
matters in its consolidated financial statements. However, a material outcome in one or more of the active proceedings
described below could have a material impact on the results of operations in a particular quarter or fiscal year.

On May 21, 2008, a purported class action case was filed in the Supreme Court of the State of New York, New York
County, by the New Jersey Carpenters' Health Fund, on behalf of itself and all others similarly situated. Defendants in
the case included NovaStar Mortgage Funding Corporation (“NMFC”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and
its individual directors, several securitization trusts sponsored by the Company ("affiliated defendants") and several
unaffiliated investment banks and credit rating agencies. The case was removed to the United States District Court for
the Southern District of New York. On June 16, 2009, the plaintiff filed an amended complaint. The plaintiff seeks
monetary damages, alleging that the defendants violated sections 11, 12 and 15 of the Securities Act of 1933, as
amended, by making allegedly false statements regarding mortgage loans that served as collateral for securities
purchased by the plaintiff and the purported class members. On August 31, 2009, the Company filed a motion to
dismiss the plaintiff's claims, which the court granted on March 31, 2011, with leave to amend. The plaintiff filed a
second amended complaint on May 16, 2011, and the Company again filed a motion to dismiss. On March 29, 2012,
the court dismissed the plaintiff's second amended complaint with prejudice and without leave to replead. The plaintiff
filed an appeal. On March 1, 2013, the appellate court reversed the judgment of the lower court, which had dismissed
the case. Also, the appellate court vacated the judgment of the lower court which had held that the plaintiff lacked
standing, even as a class representative, to sue on behalf of investors in securities in which plaintiff had not invested,
and the appellate court remanded the case back to the lower court for further proceedings. On April 23, 2013 the
plaintiff filed its memorandum with the lower court seeking a reconsideration of the earlier dismissal of plaintiff's
claims as to five offerings in which plaintiff was not invested. Given the early stage of the litigation, the Company
cannot provide an estimate of the range of any loss. The Company believes that the affiliated defendants have
meritorious defenses to the case and expects them to defend the case vigorously.

On June 20, 2011, the National Credit Union Administration Board, as liquidating agent of U.S. Central Federal
Credit Union, filed an action against NMFC and numerous other defendants in the United States District Court for the
District of Kansas, claiming that the defendants issued or underwrote residential mortgage-backed securities pursuant
to allegedly false or misleading registration statements, prospectuses, and/or prospectus supplements. On October 12,
2011, the complaint was served on NMFC. On December 20, 2011, NMFC filed a motion to dismiss the plaintiff's
complaint and to strike certain paragraphs of the complaint. On July 25, 2012, the court granted the motion in part and
denied the motion in part. The plaintiff was granted leave to amend the complaint. On August 24, 2012, the plaintiff
filed an amended complaint making essentially the same claims against NMFC. On October 29, 2012, NMFC filed a
motion to dismiss the amended complaint. The defendants had claimed that the case should be dismissed based upon a
statute of limitations and sought an appeal of the court's denial of this defense. An interlocutory appeal of this issue
was allowed, and oral argument on the appeal occurred May 8, 2013. On August 27, 2013, the Tenth Circuit affirmed
the lower court’s denial of defendants’ motion to dismiss the plaintiff’s claims as being time barred; the appellate court
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held that the Extender Statute, 12 U.S.C. §1787(b)(14) applied to plaintiff’s claims. On September 12, 2013, the lower
court denied NMFC’s motion to dismiss the amended complaint against NMFC. On June 16, 2014, the United States
Supreme Court granted a motion of NMFC and its co-defendants for certiorari and vacated the earlier ruling of Tenth
Circuit remanding the case back to the Tenth Circuit for further consideration in light of the Supreme Court’s decision
in CTS Corp. v. Waldburger, 573 U.S. ___ 2014. Additional briefs were filed with the 10th Circuit on July 11, 2014.
This litigation is in an early stage, and the Company cannot provide an estimate of the range of any loss. The
Company believes that NMFC has meritorious defenses to the case and expects it to defend the case vigorously.

On February 28, 2013 the Federal Housing Finance Agency, as conservator for the Federal Home Loan Mortgage
Corporation (Freddie Mac) and on behalf of the Trustee of the NovaStar Mortgage Funding Trust, Series 2007-1 (the
"Trust"), a securitization trust in which the Company retains a residual interest, filed a summons with notice in the
Supreme Court of the State of New York, County of New York against Novation Companies, Inc. and NovaStar
Mortgage, Inc. ("NMI"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. The notice provides that this is a breach of
contract action with respect to certain, unspecified mortgage loans and defendant's failure to repurchase such loans
under the applicable agreements. Plaintiff alleges that defendants, from the closing date of the transaction that created
the Trust that mortgage loans that were sold to the Trust, were aware of the breach of the representations and
warranties made and failed to notice and cure such breaches, and due to the failure of defendants to cure any breach,
notice to defendants would have been futile. The summons with notice was not served until June 28, 2013. By letter
dated June 24, 2013, the Trustee of the Trust forwarded a notice from Freddie Mac alleging breaches of
representations and
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warranties with respect to 43 loans, as more fully set forth in included documentation. The 43 loans had an aggregate,
original principal balance of about $6.5 million. On August 19, 2013, Deutsche Bank National Trust Company, as
Trustee, filed a complaint identifying alleged breaches of representations and warranties with respect to seven loans
that were included in the earlier list of 43 loans. Plaintiff also generally alleged a trust-wide breach of representations
and warranties by defendants with respect to loans sold and transferred to the trust. Plaintiff seeks specific
performance of repurchase obligations; compensatory, consequential, recessionary and equitable damages for breach
of contract; specific performance and damages for anticipatory breach of contract; and indemnification
(indemnification against NMI only). On October 9, 2013, the Company and NMI filed a motion to dismiss plaintiff’s
complaint. This motion to dismiss was withdrawn after plaintiff filed an amended complaint on January 28, 2014, and
on March 4, 2014 the Company and NMI filed a motion to dismiss the amended complaint. This litigation is in an
early stage, and the Company cannot provide an estimate of the range of any loss. The Company believes that it has
meritorious defenses to the case and expects to defend the case vigorously.

Item 1A. Risk Factors
Risk Factors
There have been no material changes to the risk factors previously disclosed in the Company's Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2013.

Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds
(dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

Total Number of
Shares Purchased

Average Price Paid
per Share

Total Number of
Shares Purchased
as Part of Publicly
Announced Plans
or Programs

Approximate Dollar
Value of Shares
That May Yet Be
Purchased Under
the Plans or
Programs (A)

April 1, 2014 - April 30, 2014 — — — $1,020
May 1, 2014 - May 31, 2014 — — — $1,020
June 1, 2014 - June 30, 2014 — — — $1,020

(A)

A current report on Form 8-K was filed on October 2, 2000 announcing that the Board of Directors authorized the
Company to repurchase its common shares, bringing the total authorization to $9 million. The Company has
repurchased $8.0 million to date, leaving approximately $1.0 million of shares that may yet be purchased under the
plan.

Item 3. Defaults Upon Senior Securities
None.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures
None.

Item 5. Other Information
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Item 6. Exhibits

Exhibit Listing
Exhibit No. Description of Document

10.1 (1) Amended and Restated 2004 Incentive Stock Plan (as amended May 29, 2014) *

10.2 Indemnification Agreement by and between Novation Companies, Inc. and Howard M. Amster *
10.3 Indemnification Agreement by and between Novation Companies, Inc. and Barry A. Igdaloff *

10.4
Form of Stock Option Agreement under the Company's Amended and Restated 2004 Incentive Stock
Plan (307,166 shares issued on June 20, 2014 to Steve M. Haslam and 1,329,590 shares issued on June
20, 2014 to Matthew Lautz) *

10.5 (2) First Amendment to the Company's Amended and Restated 2004 Incentive Stock Plan
31.1 Chief Executive Officer Certification filed pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

31.2 Principal Financial Officer Certification filed pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002

32.1 Chief Executive Officer Certification furnished pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002

32.2 Principal Financial Officer Certification furnished pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002

101

The following financial information from Novation Companies, Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q
for the quarter ended June 30, 2014, formatted in XBRL (Extensible Business Reporting Language)
includes: (i) Consolidated Balance Sheets as of June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, (ii) Consolidated
Statements of Operations for the six and three months ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, (iii) Consolidated
Statements of Comprehensive Income for the six and three months ended June 30, 2014 and 2013,
(iv) Consolidated Statements of Shareholders' Equity for the six months ended June 30, 2014 and 2013,
(v) Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the six months ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, and
(vi) the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

  * Management contract of compensatory plan or arrangement
(1) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Form 8-K filed by the Registrant with the SEC on May 30, 2014 (File
No. 001-13533)
(2) Incorporated by reference to Appendix A to Form DEF 14A filed by the Registrant with the SEC on April 25,
2014 (File No. 001-13533)
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

NOVATION COMPANIES, INC.

DATE: August 7, 2014 /s/ W. Lance Anderson
W. Lance Anderson, Chairman of the Board of
Directors and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

DATE: August 7, 2014 /s/ Rodney E. Schwatken
Rodney E. Schwatken, Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)

DATE: August 7, 2014 /s/ Brett A. Monger
Brett A. Monger, Vice President and Chief
Accounting Officer
(Principal Accounting Officer)
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